

Planning Commission Regular Meeting City Council Chambers, 2660 Civic Center Drive Minutes – Wednesday, November 1, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.

1. Call to Order

Chair Murphy called to order the regular meeting of the Planning Commission meeting at approximately 6:30 p.m. and reviewed the role and purpose of the Planning Commission.

2. Roll Call

At the request of Chair Murphy, City Planner Thomas Paschke called the Roll.

Members Present:	Chair Robert Murphy; Vice Chair James Bull; and Commissioners
	James Daire, Chuck Gitzen, Julie Kimble and Peter Sparby

Members Absent: Member Sharon Brown

Staff Present: City Planner Thomas Paschke

3. Approve Agenda

MOTION

Member Daire moved, seconded by Member Bull to approve the agenda as presented.

Ayes: 6 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

- 4. **Review of Minutes**
 - a. September 6, 2017 Planning Commission Regular Meeting

MOTION

Member Gitzen moved, seconded by Member Kimble to approve the September 6, 2017 meeting minutes.

Ayes: 6 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

5. Communications and Recognitions:

a. From the Public: *Public comment pertaining to general land use issues <u>not</u> on this agenda, including the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update.*

None.

b. From the Commission or Staff: Information about assorted business not already on this agenda, including a brief update on the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update process.

Member Sparby inquired when the City Council will address the Centre Pointe PUD.

Mr. Paschke responded it will be discussed on Monday, November 6.

Member Bull reported he recently attended the annual Ethics Commission meeting and where they elected the officers and had a conversation about the annual training. They concluded that the presentation format of the City Attorney for this training is effective and will continue. The training will take place in April after new Commissioners begin their terms.

c. Follow-Up on Items from Previous Meetings

None.

6. Public Hearing

a. Consider Design and Dimensional Standards to Support Multi-Family Uses in the Regional Business District (PROJ17_Amdt32)

Chair Murphy opened the public hearing for PROJ17-Amdt32 at approximately 6:34 p.m. and reported on the purpose and process of a public hearing. He advised this item will be before the City Council at the end of the month.

City Planner Paschke summarized the request as detailed in the staff report dated November 1, 2017. He reported at the August 8 Planning Commission meeting, the Commission voted to recommend amendments to Table 1005-1 supporting multifamily within Regional Business districts and to modify existing allowances within the Neighborhood and Community Business districts. The Council considered these recommendations and supports the changes to Regional Business districts, but decided to hold-off on any changes to Neighborhood or Community Business districts until after the Comprehensive Plan Update process was completed.

Mr. Paschke reported the Planning Division has reviewed Chapter 1005, Commercial and Mixed-Use district and recommends the following changes to items A, B, and C of the Statement of Purpose (1005.01):

- A. Promote an appropriate mix of commercial, office, and residential development types within the community;
- B. Improve the community's mix of land uses by encouraging mixed mediumand high-density residential uses with high quality commercial and employment uses in designated areas;
- C. Provide and attractive, inviting, high-quality retail shopping and services areas, <u>vertical mixed-use sites</u>, and medium and high density residential

<u>projects</u> that are conveniently and safely accessible by multiple travel modes included transit, walking, and bicycling;

Member Gitzen inquired if items D and E will still be included.

Mr. Paschke confirmed they would be included.

Member Kimble inquired if "mixed-use" should be defined under item C.

Mr. Paschke responded he does not see a definition and it could be included under definitions in Section 1001.

Member Kimble commented they are allowing mixed-use in the Regional Business district, but many are single sites. She inquired if there is any consideration with the connectivity between the sites to address how a retail site may interact with a residential site. It is core to what they are trying to achieve and it is the interaction between the different uses that makes it vibrant.

Mr. Paschke responded there is some connectivity language regarding sidewalks and pathways, and the City has a Pathway Master Plan. When staff is reviewing projects, they also have the ability to require sidewalks. They may want to look into the design standards and code to include more specific language.

Member Gitzen agreed they should put some emphasis on this going forward.

Chair Murphy inquired if they should also define mixed-use in the ordinance.

Member Bull stated he does not think it is necessary because it is already used on the zoning map.

Mr. Paschke confirmed it is not defined, and moving forward all the business district designations will become forms of mixed-use. A definition in the code as it relates to mixed-use may not be necessary when that zoning code is going to allow for the mix of uses that are supported.

Member Kimble inquired if mixed-use would have the same definition across all the different areas.

Mr. Paschke responded they could not have Industrial or Employment because they are not proposing them as mixed-use districts. Varying degrees of mixed-use would be included in the Community Mixed-Use district, Community Business district, Neighborhood Business district, and Regional Business district. If it is not a permitted use within the table of uses, it would not be allowed.

Member Daire pointed out the proposed text amendment calls out commercial, office, and residential, and clearly defines what they are looking to encourage.

Mr. Paschke agreed, and stated office was included because all of the business districts allow for a variety of office.

Member Kimble suggested staff look further into whether they should include a mixed-use definition.

Mr. Paschke confirmed they will look further into it and look at what other cities have done.

Member Sparby stated they should also consider if it makes sense to define it in this part of the code.

Mr. Paschke commented it would be included in the definition section of the code.

Member Daire referred to the current text under item B. He inquired if delivery truck and auto traffic are understood and if the text represents the full spectrum of transit modes. He suggested they include "auto and truck traffic".

Mr. Paschke suggested they use the word "vehicle".

The Commission agreed to include the word "vehicle" under item B.

Mr. Paschke reported on the proposed Design Standards revisions. The goal was to pair these standards from both the residential multi-family requirements with the business requirements. In doing so, it created the following two standards with modifications:

- 1005.01.<u>A</u> Design Standards <u>– Nonresidential and Mixed Use Projects</u> The following standards apply to new buildings, and major expansion of existing buildings (i.e., expansions that constitute 50% or more of building floor area, and change in use in all commercial...
- <u>1005.02.B Design Standards Multi-Family Projects</u> (*second paragraph*) The following standards apply to new buildings and major expansions (i.e., expansions that constitute 50% or more of building floor area), and changes in use. Design standards apply...

Member Daire inquired if the intent was to regulate the types of uses that could come into a vacant space.

Mr. Paschke responded yes. He provided the example of when Hom Furniture vacated their building, and it could have been created into many different things. There should be a trigger mechanism for the building to adhere to certain design standard if the new proposed use is different. Acorn Mini Storage took over the former Hom Furniture building, and there was not a way for them to require enhancements to what the building looked like. The proposed text language will allow them to get the buildings more in line with the zoning code.

Member Daire summarized the intent is to focus on the appearance of the building rather than how the tenant will use the space.

Mr. Paschke stated the tenant is regulated under the current code, but the building is not.

Member Kimble inquired if both 1005.02A and 1005.02B include items A through I, and if they are appropriate for both classifications. She also inquired if change in ownership is a trigger.

Mr. Paschke responded change in ownership is not a trigger. He referred to 1005.02.A Design Standards – Nonresidential and Mixed Use Projects and explained the only changes are underlined and the existing standards that are specific to this section would apply. He then referred to 1005.02.B Design Standards – Multi-Family Projects, and explained items A through I should have all been underlined and in red in the report and are standards incorporated and specific to this section. Staff will determine the best way to renumber this so that it is not confusing.

Chair Murphy stated all the standards for 1005.02.A are unchanged and should be included between lines 83 and 84.

Mr. Paschke confirmed this. He explained the design standards are currently in the code and were developed in 2010 by staff and a consultant.

Chair Murphy referred to item G, Attached Garages, and pointed out lines 120 through 126 have typos.

Mr. Paschke stated it should read, "Garage design shall be set back and defer to the primary building face. Front loaded garages (toward the front street), if provided shall be set back a minimum of 5 feet from the predominant portion of the principal use. (Ord. 1405, 2-28-2011)."

Member Gitzen referred to line 89, and stated there should be a comma after buildings. He referred to lines 97, 99, and 125, and inquired if the words "off sets" should be two words or one.

Mr. Paschke stated he will look into it and make the appropriate changes.

Member Gitzen referred to line 100, and inquired if 8 feet represents the current code. The table below line 147 shows a street setback of 10 feet.

Mr. Paschke stated he is not sure they want decks that close to the front property line and he will ask staff about it.

Member Kimble inquired if they will look to see if building design standards have changed when they align the Comprehensive Plan with some of the zoning.

Mr. Paschke responded they will look at them after the Comprehensive Plan is adopted. Design standards for cities blend what they would like to create with what the market creates.

Member Sparby pointed out under the descriptions for 1005.02A and 1005.02B, the proposed additional text should be read " and changes in use."

Mr. Paschke continued his report, and referred to charts that displayed the dimensional standards for Regional Business district and High Density Residential (HDR). He reported staff focused on the HDR-2 requirements as a way to bring in very similar standards into the Business district. He provided an overview of proposed Table 1005-4 under line 147 of the staff report. Relating to building height, he explained they have seen a few buildings that have had to make modifications to the 65-foot height measured at the midpoint of the roof truss. Staff is proposing to allow 6 stories or 65 feet, whichever is greater, and discuss what a story is in relation to feet. This chart defines "A story is deemed to be between 9 and 12 feet in height, however can be greater in mixed vertical development."

Chair Murphy suggested they add a footnote indicator in the table to direct people to this definition.

Member Kimble stated this exercise is intended to modify Regional Business. She referred to the Regional Business area of Rosedale and stated from a development standpoint, six stories seem very short, does not match the available scale, and will be an issue for economic feasibility. It may be appropriate for the Regional Business area along Highway 35 and to the north and west, but the bulk of the area could benefit from some height.

Chair Murphy commented the residential area on the north side of Rosedale might have an issue with a higher height allowance.

Member Kimble stated the height maximum will fall short in the area around Rosedale where they have looked at developing the parking.

Mr. Paschke agreed and stated a ten-foot maximum it is not out of character in the highway corridor area. A mixed-use project in that area is going to require greater height.

Member Kimble commented 10 stories seems more appropriate, with less allowed as it gets near the single-family residential area.

Member Daire commented with an urban form, there is generally more height around the central business area and agreed 10 stories seems appropriate.

Member Sparby inquired how they came up with six stories.

Mr. Paschke responded in the prior code, they used stories. However, they were not defined nor did they include a height. In the current code, they went with height because it was more easily measured than stories.

Member Sparby commented he supports going with an acceptable height restriction. He would like to see it at least at 12 feet because it promotes longevity and air space.

Member Kimble agreed as long as it was generous enough. She suggested staff research in and come back with a number.

Member Daire inquired if this discussion has been helpful.

Mr. Paschke stated it has been helpful. He will provide this document to the Commission as a redlined/underlined document as well as how it will look once it is adopted.

Public Comment

No one came forward to speak for or against this request.

The Commission agreed to continue the public hearing to allow staff to incorporate the proposed changes and provide a revised document to them.

b. Consideration of Zoning Code Text Amendments to Permit a Contractor Yard as Permitted or Conditional Use in the Office Business Park District (PF17-018)

Chair Murphy opened the public hearing for PF17-018 at approximately 7:24 p.m. He advised this item will be before the City Council at the end of the month.

City Planner Paschke summarized the request as detailed in the staff report dated November 1, 2017. He referred to line 28 of the staff report, and highlighted the current definition of contractor yard and the three outdoor storage allowances that are found in Table 1006-1 and Section 1011.12. He stated there is some confusion between what a contract yard would use and what is defined as outdoor storage. He then highlighted the definitions for warehousing, distribution, and processing. These include limited production/processing, limited warehousing and distribution, warehouse, wholesale establishment, and manufacturing, production, and processing. He stated limited production/processing, limited warehouse distribution, and wholesale establishment are permitted within the Office/Business Park district.

Mr. Paschke reported there are contractor yards that have office space, utilize indoor storage, have minimal outdoor storage, and smaller fleet vehicles. There are very few City zoning codes that have contractor yard as a defined use, and define these types of areas under warehouse or distribution center. In response to this, the Planning Division attempted to modify the contractor yard definition into two types: limited and unlimited. It also recommended they change the warehouse and distribution center definitions as follows:

- Warehouse or warehousing: The storage of materials or equipment within an enclosed building as a principle use.
- Distribution center: A warehouse primarily used for receipt, temporary storage and redistribution of goods, typically involving heavy truck and/or freight rail traffic.

Mr. Paschke stated the limited version of the contractor yard designation follows the existing code, but is defined in a way that takes into account what limited warehousing and distribution supports. The proposed definition of unlimited contractor yard would include heavy duty construction equipment that takes up space, is harder to screen, and should not be permitted in an Office/Business Park. The Planning Division recommends the following proposed definitions of "contractor yard":

- Contractor yard <u>– limited</u>: An establishment providing general contracting, <u>building/site maintenance</u>, or building and construction services, including (but not limited to) fleet vehicles (pick-up, cargo, and/or cube variety trucks), outdoor storages of <u>trailers or</u> machinery <u>and/or seasonal</u> equipment. <u>Outdoor</u> <u>storage of these items shall be consistent with the requirements of Table 1006-1 and Section 1011.12.F.8, 9, and 10.</u>
- Contractor yard <u>– unlimited</u>: An establishment providing general contracting, <u>building/site maintenance</u>, or building construction services, including (<u>but</u> <u>not limited to</u>) outdoor storage of <u>large construction equipment or</u> machinery (<u>loader, grader, bulldozer, scraper, crane, or similar</u>) trailers and/or <u>seasonal</u> equipment, and loose material. Outdoor storage of these items shall be <u>consistent with the requirements of Table 1006-1 and Section 1011.12.F.8, 9, and 10.</u>

Table 1006-1	O/BP	Ι	Standards	
Manufacturing, Research, and Wholesale Uses				
Contractor's Yard-Limited	<u>NP P</u>	Р		
Contractor's Yard- Unlimited	NP	<u>P</u>		
Distribution Center	NP	<u>P</u>		
Outdoor storage, equipment and	<u>C P</u>	Р	Y	
goods				
Outdoor storage, fleet vehicles	Р	Р	Y	
Outdoor storage, inoperable/out	<u> </u>	Р	Y	
of service vehicles or equipment				
Outdoor storage, loose materials	NP	C	Y	

Mr. Paschke highlighted the following changes to Table 1006-1 provided in the staff report:

Chair Murphy expressed concern with a growing scrapyard by allowing outdoor storage of equipment and goods. He suggested keeping it as a conditional use and requiring additional conditions before approving it. Member Gitzen agreed with Chair Murphy's comments.

Member Kimble commented there are not a lot of Office/Business Park zoning areas in Roseville. If she were looking for an office, she would have a really hard time with most of the uses next to this area, but yet it is allowed. She stated she could build a Class A office building in Centre Pointe, but the map shows there could be industrial uses right next to it.

Mr. Paschke provided a list that displayed all the uses. He stated limited warehouse and distribution and limited production and processing are two uses that would be allowed next to an office building.

Member Kimble stated because this text amendment applies to the overall zoning area and due to the mix of uses permitted, she would want contractor's yard limited and all of the outdoor storage to be conditional in an office yard. It provides an opportunity to review where the storage will go and what is adjacent to it.

Member Bull stated he agrees that contractor yard limited and outdoor storage should be conditional to provide boundaries and approval authority over what was being proposed. Fleet storage is different, is more of a parking lot atmosphere, and would probably not be as obtrusive to a business park. He also thinks distribution center should be conditional in an Office/Business Park district.

Mr. Paschke pointed out the Office/Business Park zoning districts on the map.

Member Gitzen commented with the buildings that are in that area now, he agrees with Members Kimble and Bull that there should be more control over what goes in there.

Mr. Paschke suggested they change contractor yard limited to conditional along with whatever outdoor storage they would prefer to change. He is not opposed to the suggestions made by the Commission.

In response to Member Daire, Mr. Paschke pointed out if something is conditional, it must come to the Planning Commission and go to City Council. There may be some standards they want to look at regarding the conditional use process.

Member Gitzen commented it is also important the public have input when they are drastically changing a use near a neighborhood.

Member Sparby pointed out with the permitted uses, applicants will also have to meet the outdoor storage allowances in Section 1011.12F, Nos. 8, 9, and 10. These provide screening requirements and they seem to be covered pretty well. He suggested it be a permitted use since these requirements need to be met.

Mr. Paschke commented screening requirements are rigorous and most of what they see going up are a solid wood fence or other types of materials. Regarding storage,

the reason he changed it from conditional to permitted is based on what is required in code and what could be stored. He is open to what the Planning Commission agrees on for this area.

Member Sparby stated he agrees with Chair Murphy that they would want more restrictions over inoperable vehicles and would support a permitted use with contractor's yard limited. The equipment storage would need to meet the outdoor storage allowances requirements.

Member Daire commented he would support these as conditional uses. The intersection of Hamline and Commerce near Highway 36 has many places that are Office/Business Park and he would be concerned if the old Hom store or post office were converted into a contractor yard. Another area of concern is midway between Fairview Avenue and Snelling, just north of County Road B2. He is less concerned with the area proximate to the Interstate 35 near 88. If this is going to be changed to the zoning code, he suggested they look at it instead of blanket permitting it.

Member Bull commented making this conditional would also allow them to look further into the potential traffic impact and if heavy equipment needed to be part of the traffic.

Member Gitzen agreed with Member Bull. He referred to lines 47-50 regarding outdoor storage, and stated there is a loophole with inoperable vehicles and out-ofservice being allowed if they meet the requirements for outdoor storage of inoperable/out-of-service vehicles or equipment. In Table 1006-1, outdoor storage is a permitted use and inoperable vehicles are allowed in the outdoor storage. If they keep outdoor storage as a conditional use, then inoperable vehicles will still be permitted, and that is what they are trying to get away from.

Member Daire inquired where Transwestern was located and what triggered this text amendment.

Mr. Paschke commented Transwestern is located at 1900 County Road C.

Member Sparby commented there are restrictions on outdoor storage and he is leaning toward having more permitted uses. He inquired if they should have stricter storage restrictions in order to have more support for permitted uses. He sees the conditional use as an unnecessary step in the process if an applicant meets the requirements.

Member Daire responded they can meet the conditions, but have the use out of character for what is in the area. It is for these potential out of character proposals that they should consider having the use be conditional.

Member Sparby stated the Office/Business Park zoning district is the characterization of the property, and they also have to meet the outdoor storage restrictions.

Member Daire commented a contractor's yard is distinctly different from Office/Business Park and suggested they include conditions to help it fit in.

Mr. Paschke stated he does not know that a contractor yard as a use needs to be regulated as a conditional use. It is the outdoor storage component that is concerning, and the code regulates it through a conditional use requirement. It will get confusing to have a conditional use for a contractor yard and have a conditional use for the outdoor storage, which is really the reason the contractor yard would have a conditional use to begin with.

Member Daire agreed with Mr. Paschke and commented this was brought to them as a modification for contractor yard. The focus is on the exterior and they are presuming that what happens inside the building is not the focus of concern.

Public Comment

John Thompson, with Transwestern and representing the groups that are pursing the contractor yard text language change, commented this site is currently owned by a company that stores product. The new owner will be using it as a type of contractor's yard and may have trailers in the yard. A lot of the buildings in that area are currently industrial in use. The rezoning to an Office/Business Park use does not align with any of the existing properties and he is requesting to continue the current use in that building. Their intent is to have trailers stored there for the use of their business. They are a local company currently located in the building right next to this site, and it seems like the use of their outdoor storage with proper screening is a good and reasonable for the site.

Member Daire commented he is eager to accommodate new businesses. Text changes affect the whole City, and he inquired if there is a more direct way, such as a variance, to get at this.

Member Kimble inquired about the process of a variance.

Mr. Paschke responded variances run with the property. However, it is not possible to get a variance for use. Staff is mindful that text changes can be impactful for other properties.

With no one further coming forward to speak for or against this request, Chair Murphy closed the public hearing at approximately 8:09 p.m.

Commission Deliberation

Member Kimble commented the underlying zoning is what makes this challenging. It could be a real issue if Centre Pointe were to revert to Office/Business Park because now there are all these suggested uses in that area. She is not comfortable with the permitted uses because the text change hits every Office/Business Park site in the City. She suggested they make some of the uses conditional as opposed to permitted.

Member Bull commented the underlying zoning varies all over the City and that is why it is tough to have a text change without any restrictions. In the past few years, they have seen the City Council use a lot of discretion in approving or denying conditional use. With this site, the storage may not be an issue, but movement of vehicles in and out could be. They need to have some level of control on this.

Member Sparby stated fleet vehicles are currently permitted.

Member Kimble commented fleet vehicles should be conditional.

Member Bull stated he could go either way with fleet vehicles. This does help Mr. Thompson's business because a conditional use does open a lane that they can still achieve what they are looking for.

Member Sparby stated there is a disconnect in allowing fleet vehicles because that can be even more disruptive to traffic. If Office/Business Park is the zoning, they are affording quite a bit of protection in the screening requirements. He would support making the requirements more rigorous to allow more flexibility for the businesses.

Member Bull stated the screening requirements are for sight, not noise. There could be 30 trucks that need to be started early in the morning, and if this is in any proximity to a residential area, the noise would be very disruptive. It is permitted with fleet vehicles, but not with heavy equipment, and this is providing an avenue to have it permitted.

Member Sparby commented business will be conducted in the Office/Business Park area, and there is a certain aspect of commerce that should be accommodated.

Member Bull responded conditional use permits are used to create additional requirements if a proposed use or location of a property is not in line with what is currently in the area. If it is just permitted, then staff has no opportunity to review it or require more restrictions.

MOTION

Member Kimble moved, seconded by Member Gitzen to accept the changes proposed by staff on lines 126 through 145, with the following amendments to Table 1006-1: 1) Industrial (I) column - no changes; 2) Office/Business Park (O/BP) column – contractor's yard limited become conditional; contractor's yard unlimited and distribution center remain not permitted; outdoor storage, equipment and goods remain conditional; outdoor storage, fleet vehicles become conditional; outdoor storage, inoperable/out of service vehicles or equipment remain conditional; and, outdoor storage, loose materials remain not permitted.

Member Kimble stated the underlying zoning is interesting and she is not comfortable allowing some of these to be permitted when there is a wide range of current uses and adjacencies.

Member Gitzen agreed with Member Kimble. He stated changing outdoor storage and fleet vehicles would address his previous concern regarding inoperable vehicles.

Member Daire agreed with Member Gitzen.

Member Bull asked Member Kimble why she recommended distribution center remain not permitted versus conditional when it is a split off of a use that is permitted today.

Mr. Paschke responded the current warehousing supports heavy trucks and/or freight traffic, which is different than the proposed definition. The proposed warehouse definition is more conducive to indoor storage. They are creating the distribution center to be the warehousing definition, and warehouse is becoming more indoor storage.

Member Kimble clarified they have added a distribution center definition on lines 143 to 145, but it is not permitted in the table.

Mr. Paschke pointed out warehousing and distribution is also not in the table.

MOTION TO AMEND

Chair Murphy moved, seconded by Member Sparby to amend the main motion to allow contractor yard limited remain permitted, as recommend by staff.

Chair Murphy commented they are covered in contractor's yard limited, industrial is permitted and with the definition of contractor's yard limited, it would not be an imposition on neighboring properties.

Member Gitzen commented he will not support the amendment.

Member Sparby stated there are rigorous requirements that must be met with a contractor's yard. A residential property abutting an Office/Business Park area is not afforded the same protections and will be subject to more noise and inconvenience.

Member Gitzen stated he would rather have the control with making it conditional, especially because this affects areas throughout the entire City, not just one site.

Member Bull commented he will not support the amendment because they do need to controls. He stated the affected residents should have the opportunity to come before the Planning Commission and City Council to state their reasons for conditions that should be in place.

Ayes: 2 Nays: 4 (Gitzen, Bull, Daire, Kimble) Motion denied.

Page 14

Members Kimble and Gitzen agreed they support warehouse/warehousing as a permitted use in both office/business park and industrial.

Member Sparby moved to amend the main motion to allow outdoor storage, fleet vehicles to remain as permitted. The motion failed for lack of a second.

The Planning Commission voted on the main motion.

Ayes: 5 Nays: 1 (Sparby) Motion carried.

c. Community Workshop 2: *Review materials and plan presented at the meeting for the community engagement events scheduled for November 8 and November 9*

Mr. Paschke reported they did not receive the information on this item until late in the day today. They plan to email it tomorrow morning, assemble the comments provided by Commissioners, and make the necessary changes.

Mr. Paschke announced the next Comprehensive Plan Update meeting will be on November 29.

7. Other Business

a. Discuss 2018 Planning Commission Dates

Chair Murphy referred to the memo dated October 27, 2017. He pointed out the meeting that was supposed to take place on July 4, 2018 will instead take place on July 11, 2018.

Member Kimble commented she may not be at the meeting on August 1, 2018.

Chair Murphy inquired if they are allowed to Skype into meetings.

Mr. Paschke responded he did not know if there was a ruling on it.

MOTION

Member Gitzen, seconded by Member Bull to accept the 2018 Planning Commission meeting dates as published, with July 4 being changed to July 11, and the 2018 comprehensive plan update meeting dates.

Ayes: 6 Nays: 0 Motion carried.

Member Kimball inquired if the Commission would like an update on the Rice/Larpenteur project from a task force perspective.

Chair Murphy commented it would appropriate.

8. Adjourn

MOTION

Member Kimble, seconded by Member Gitzen to adjourn the meeting at 8:34 p.m.

Ayes: 6 Nays: 0 Motion carried.